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  THE TERRORIST ASSASSINS
 -Operation Gladio, Rockefeller, Bush, the

Ford-Reagan Assassinations-

 “A coalition of multinational corporate executives, big-city
bankers, and hungry power brokers... want to give you George
Bush... their purpose is to control the American government.” -
Ronald Reagan, 1980.

 The resignation of Richard Nixon set off a scramble for the
Vice-Presidency.  The place guard that surrounded President Ford
were divided, with Kissinger pushing for the appointment of his
former boss (1), Nelson Rockefeller. Ford’s chief of staff, Donald
Rumsfeld (2) and his aid, Dick Cheney, were instead suggesting
Rumsfeld as a possible candidate for the job.  Bush, too, was ac-
tively seeking the vice-presidency, as was Rockefeller (2,3).

 As George H.W. Bush had only won one election in his life,
serving as a one term congressman, to name him vice-President
did not seem to be a logical choice.

 But there were considerations that had nothing to do with
the Vice-Presidency, and everything to do with putting a stop to the
Senate’s intention to begin hearings into the illegal activities, as-
sassinations, and other crimes committed by the CIA—investiga-
tions that had been stimulated by Watergate.

 William Colby, the new CIA director, as he was responsible
for spilling the beans, would soon be shown the door. A replace-
ment, a cover-up artist, would be needed to fill his leaky shoes.

 Bush, as he had been in the CIA since at least 1960 or 1961,
seemed the logical choice to become the director of the CIA, for a
number of reasons, including those related to his having “turned
into assholes and shit himself to death” (3) when it appeared that
certain of his past CIA indiscretions might come to light (see chap-
ter 4). For Bush, to become CIA director would almost be like a
home coming, like a family and class reunion. Indeed, the agency
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was already overrun with Bush cousins from the Walker side of the
family—Walkers who were also Skull and Bones alumni (4).  In-
deed, there was so many Yale’s Skull and Bonesmen in the CIA, it
was joked that meetings involving top CIA officials could be lik-
ened to a Yale class reunion (5).

 Bush, having been with the agency since at least 1960 (6),
also had personal, political, and business-related reasons to take
command and to prevent the Senate’s prying eyes from ever get-
ting a detailed look inside the American version of the Gestapo.
But then, so did the Rockefeller clan.

 Nelson Rockefeller had been associated with the CIA—the
Brotherhood of Death— since the Eisenhower and Nixon admin-
istrations, when he served on panels which oversaw the highly se-
cret agency (7).  Rockefeller also frequently made speeches in which
he referred to “the brotherhood”—which may have been a veiled
reference to Yale’s Skull and Bones or Hitler’s SS (the Brother-
hood of Death).  In fact, he so often repeated the phrase, “the broth-
erhood of man under the fatherhood of God,” that reporters short-
ened it to create the acronym BOMFOG.

 Rockefeller liked to pretend he was a man of the people.
However, once when his aids proposed a plan that would increase
worker’s take-home pay, Rockefeller asked (8), “What is take-home
pay?”

 Rockefeller also held a controlling interest in a Standard Oil
subsidiary (Creole Petroleum Company) in Venezuela (8)—a coun-
try that housed CIA-bases for the training of special assassination
teams that could be sent anywhere in the world, even America (9).

 More importantly, at least in regard to a choice for  vice presi-
dent, whereas Bush had been a one term congressman, Rockefeller
had been elected governor of New York four times.

 President Ford faced two difficult choices, and one of his
main concerns was covering up CIA malfeasance and its involve-
ment in terrorist plots and political assassinations (10). It was not
so much a matter of which man to pick for which job.  Rather,
Bush and Rockefeller would require Senate confirmation, and both
men were distrusted by various Senate factions. Some senators,
such as Frank Church, were already grumbling about Bush, accus-
ing him of being a fascist bent on installing a totalitarian govern-
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ment.
 Finally, Ford chose Rockefeller to be his vice-president.

George Bush got the nod for the CIA post, in November, after the
firing of CIA director William Colby because of his failure to con-
tain the Senate and House investigations.  Bush was confirmed in
December. However, whereas the choice of Rockefeller triggered
applause from many quarters, especially the media, the choice of
Bush provoked outrage (11).

 As summed up by nationally syndicated Washington Post
columnists: “the Bush nomination is regarded by some intelligence
experts as another grave morale deflator [and] would aggravate the
CIA’s credibility gap.”

 Senator Frank Church accused Bush of being involved in
past coverups, and warned that Bush would abuse his power and
engage in future coverups if he got the post (12): “There is no ques-
tion in my mind but that concealment is the new order of the day.”

 Church even accused Bush of being a fascist who hid his evil
acts behind the secrecy of government. Church said of Bush (12),
“Hiding evil is the trademark of a totalitarian government.”

 A totalitarian government, however, is the Hegelian/Hitler
ideal—the same ideal worshipped by the Yale Bonesmen—the
Brotherhood of Death. As detailed in previous chapters, the Bush
family made its fortune doing business with Nazis, and continued
supporting the totalitarian Hitler regime even after Hitler declared
war on the United States (13).

 The CIA, too, was a manifestation of the Hegelian/Hitler
ideal.  Thousands of murderers who had been Nazi SS Gestapo
officers, were recruited into the CIA (14). As detailed by the Church
Committee (15) and others (16) terror, torture, mass murder, and
the assassination of democratically elected leaders was official CIA
policy.

 Frank Church intended to lead the Senate investigation into
past CIA-abuses. Even before the appointment of Bush and the
firing of CIA director, William Colby, he had described the CIA as
a rogue operation, “a self-serving  bureaucracy which feeds on it-
self. Those involved are constantly sitting around thinking up
schemes for [foreign] intervention which will win them promo-
tions and justify further additions to the staff... It self-generates
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interventions that otherwise never would be thought of, let alone
authorized.”

 Given that Bush-Walker family tentacles had spread through-
out the CIA, like a cancer, Senator Church and others were con-
vinced that if George W. Bush became the next director of the CIA,
it would be bad for country.

 “The wrong kind of guy at the wrong place at the worst pos-
sible time” —Nationally syndicated columnist, George Will.

 Despite these objections, and with the help of powerful busi-
ness and banking interests, George Bush got the job in December
of 1975.

 Nelson Rockefeller—after extensive hearings into his wealth,
and despite the fact that he had been discovered paying bribes to
government officials, including Henry Kissinger (8)—was sworn
in as the 41st vice president of the United States on Dec. 19, 1974.

 Rockefeller envisioned taking charge of domestic policies.
Much to his chagrin, Rockefeller was immediately challenged and
blocked at every turn by a formidable clique headed by Ford chief
of staff Donald Rumsfeld and his aid, Dick Cheney (17).

 Instead, Rockefeller (as well as Kissinger, Rumsfeld, and
Cheney) would be used to head off the Senate investigation of the
CIA—an investigation triggered by Watergate and a December
1974, article in the New York Times in which Seymour Hersh pub-
lished an exposé of the CIA and its violation of the CIA’s charter.

MKULTRA: PROGRAMMABLE ASSASSINS
 As later reported by the Church Committee, in addition to

murder, assassination, torture, and terrorism, the CIA had been
engaging in Nazi-like experiments, often on unwitting human sub-
jects, exposing them to diseases and mind altering drugs, such as
LSD. The objectives of CIA projects,  such as “BLUEBIRD,” “AR-
TICHOKE,” and “MKULTRA” included using drugs, hypnosis,
and terror, to create alternate “split” personalities. One objective
was to create artificial personalities which could be programmed
to assassinate specified targets, such as labor leaders or politicians,
and which could be used to engage in other high risk assignments
that might normally be avoided.  Related to this was the goal of
defeating interrogation. That is, once the altered, secondary per-
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sonality carried out its mission, the main personality would return
to the forefront of consciousness, but would have no memory of
being programmed as those memories would be locked away in
the split-off portion of the alternate personality.

 It is unknown if the CIA was successful in creating pro-
grammed assassins, as CIA director Helms destroyed most (but
not all) the records.  Nevertheless, some have wondered if Sirhan
Sirhan (the assassin of Robert Kennedy), Artur Bremer (the 1972
attempted assassin of presidential candidate George Wallace),
Squeaky Fromm and Sarah Jane Moore (the attempted assassins of
Ford) and Hinckley (the attempted assassin of Reagan) may have
been programmed by “MKULTRA.”

THE CIA-CONTROLLED MEDIA: PROPAGANDA AS
TERROR

 Following Nixon’s resignation there were other embarrass-
ments as well—not only for the CIA, but for the nation’s media.
According to William Colby, former Director of the CIA: “The
Central Intelligence Agency owns everyone of any significance in
the major media.”

 Indeed, the Church committee verified this revelation, and
determined that the CIA had co-opted several hundred journalists,
including some of the biggest names in the business.  Big name
reporters and some of the “Talking Heads” that were featured on
network news, were being paid big bucks by the CIA to lie, to
distort, and to spread propaganda.

 For example, Lesley Gelb, of the New York Times, was ac-
cused of having been on the payroll of the CIA. It has been alleged
that one of Gelb’s duties was to recruit journalists in Europe, who
would write stories that would create public acceptance for the use
of the neutron bomb.

 Frank Snepp, a CIA field officer, had also revealed how the
CIA and British intelligence was “using journalists as field opera-
tives.”

 A 1968 memorandum from CIA headquarters to CIA direc-
tor Richard Helms described how the CIA had coopted a commer-
cial news agency, Forum World Features, which sold weekly pack-
ets of news stories to newspapers all over the world. “Forum... has
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provided the United States with a significant means to counter pro-
paganda, and it has become a respected feature service well on the
way to a position of prestige in the journalism world.”

 “One journalist is worth twenty agents.” —anonymous CIA
agent.

 Carl Bernstein, writing in the October 1977 issue of  Rolling
Stone magazine, reported that more than 400 American journalists
worked for the CIA, and that the New York Times was one of the
CIA’s closest media collaborators.  Yet other CIA assets included
Philip Graham, publisher of the Washington Post, as well as
Newsweek and Time magazine and CBS news. In December of
1977, the New York Times reported that “more than eight hundred
news and public information organizations and individuals,” had
been on the CIA’s payroll.

 As summed up by Bernstein: “America’s leading publishers
allowed themselves and their news services to become handmaidens
to the intelligence services.”

 Nor has the practice of using the media to lie to the Ameri-
can people gone away. A classified CIA report which was acciden-
tally released in 1992, revealed the CIA “has relationships with
reporters from every major wire service, newspaper, news weekly,
and television network in the nation.”

 Since 1996, the task of the CIA to coopt the mass media has
been made much simpler. Less than two dozen corporations now
control or own over 90% of the nearly 10,000 newspapers, maga-
zines, and radio and TV stations in America (18).

 Should we be surprised, therefore, that whereas the mass
media put President Clinton’s minor sex scandal under the micro-
scope for nearly two years, that this same corporate-controlled
media has avoided examining CIA, FBI and Bush administration
complicity in the 9/11 terrorist attacks?

 Controlling the media is a classic Nazi tactic. “Propaganda”
Hitler once said, “is the most effective form of terrorism.”

                     OPERATION STAY BEHIND
 In 1974, there were only the grossest hints as to the CIA’s

involvement in assassinations, torture, mind-control experiments,
and the manipulation of the media. It was to be the job of
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Rockefeller, as well as Rumsfeld and Cheney, to cover all tracks
and to stop any House or Senate investigation, or at least throw it
off the track (15).

 Despite the efforts of the Ford-Rockefeller White House, the
Senate and House each established their own Select Committee on
Intelligence Activities, chaired by Frank Church and Otis Pike (re-
spectively).  Rockefeller, with the assistance of Kissinger, Rumsfeld,
and Dick Cheney, began obstructing Senate and House  inquir-
ies, particularly those which in any way concerned the training and
employment of CIA assassination teams (10,15,19) or terrorist at-
tack squads, such as Operation Gladio.

 The Pike Committee  finally issued a  contempt of Congress
citation against Henry Kissinger for his refusal to provide docu-
mentation of covert operations. Kissinger, Rockefeller et al.,
thumbed their noses at Pike.

 The coverup effort was a partial success. For example, there
is only a brief mention of “Operation Stay Behind” within the
Church reports (Pike’s report being suppressed). Operation Stay
Behind was a CIA terrorist operation aimed at the citizens and poli-
ticians of European countries and their democratically elected lead-
ers (20).

 According to the 1976 Senate report on the CIA by the Church
Committee, this program was first conceived by the US Joint Chiefs
of Staff was staffed and funded by the CIA, and put into operation
in 1948 by the National Security Council.

 Essentially, the CIA was using Nazis, Neo-Nazis, SS-offic-
ers, and CIA-trained terrorists to indiscriminately murder Euro-
pean men, women and children, and to assassinate or otherwise
remove or eliminate communist, socialist, and left-wing politicians.

 In Italy, this program was referred to as “Operation Gladio
(which means “sword”). In Austria it was named “Schwert”
(“sword”). In France it was called “Glaive” (“sword”). It was called
“Operation Sheepskin” in Greece. “Sveaborg” in Sweden. In Bel-
gium, Operation Stay Behind had the name: “SDR-8.” Likewise,
in Switzerland it was given an alpha-numerical name: “P26.”

 Regardless of country, Operation Stay Behind was run by
the CIA and British Intelligence under the umbrella of NATO, and
involved the use of snipers, police officers, and para-military units
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to kill people at random and to conduct brutal raids on supermar-
kets, theaters, and other public places (21-28). In one series of at-
tacks, in Brussels in the mid 1980’s, 28 people were murdered while
shopping at local supermarkets. Again, the purpose of these attacks
was to strengthen the hand of right-wing governments and to pre-
vent left-wing governments or politicians from coming to power.

 It was the duty of Bush, Kissinger, Rockefeller, Cheney, and
Rumsfeld, to try to cover up these crimes.  Indeed Rumsfeld (the
Secretary of Defense when the U.S. was attacked on 9/11)  had served
as U.S. Ambassador to NATO in Brussels, Belgium in 1973 and
1974—when some of the worst atrocities were taking place— and
thus had a special personal interest in preventing any damaging dis-
closures.

OPERATION GLADIO: CIA TERRORIST ATTACKS ON
EUROPE

 “The Americans had gone beyond the infiltration and moni-
toring of extremist groups to instigating acts of violence.” -General
Gianadelio Maletti, Director of  Italian Counter-Intelligence 1971-
1975.

 Operation Sword (“Gladio/Schwert/Glaive, etc.”)  was an out-
growth of Dulles’ “Operation Stay Behind.” Initially, this program
served to recruit high ranking Nazis and SS Gestapo agents into the
OSS and the CIA after the close of WWII.  By 1952, Dulles and his
CIA had created a secret guerrilla terrorist army whose primary mis-
sion was terrorism and assassination—often of random targets who
might be murdered by snipers, as they shopped or walked down the
street.  Dulles believed that through random acts of terror, left-wing
governments could be overthrown, or prevented from ever coming
to power if the blame for those terrorist acts could be placed on left-
ists (20).  Right wing governments are always the beneficiaries of
terrorism.

 Operation Sword was first put into operation in Italy, in 1947.
Italian citizens were gunned down by snipers, trains were derailed,
and buildings and planes were blown up by CIA-Nazi agents, and
then blamed on “communists.” The purpose of this terrorist cam-
paign was to prevent a communist electoral victory in the 1947 Ital-
ian elections. This CIA orchestrated terrorist campaign was a suc-
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cess (21).
 These and other acts of random terror (Operation Stay Be-

hind), although directed by the CIA (in conjunction with British In-
telligence) were administered under the protective umbrella of the
Clandestine Co-ordinating Committee at the Supreme Headquarters
Allied Powers Europe “SHAPE” (22). SHAPE would later became
the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO).

 Although these CIA-terrorist cells were spread all over Eu-
rope, the training bases were located in Germany, Italy and France.
Likewise, these terrorist operations were directed and funded by CIA
agents working in the US Embassies in Rome, Paris, and Berlin.
These same CIA agents not only controlled these terrorists cells, but
had infiltrated and often directed the Intelligence services of these
and other countries (23).

 In Italy, project “Stay Behind” was known as Operation Gladio.
 As detailed by Charles Richards and Simon Jones (24), the

purpose of Operation Gladio was “to engage in clandestine, non-
conventional” acts of terrorism.  Over 600 “people were recruited
and trained by American and British intelligence at the Capo
Marrargui base on the northern tip of Sardinia. They were organized
in 40 independent cells.  Six were responsible for intelligence-gath-
ering, 10 for sabotage, 6 for codes and radio communications, 6 for
running escape routes and 12 for guerrilla warfare.  Five of the guer-
rilla units were named after flowers such as azalea, rhododendron
and broom.  Gladio established 139 arms caches [which] were used
by right-wing terrorists.”

 Ed Vulliamy, of the Guardian (25) uncovered “a briefing minute
of June 1, 1959” which revealed that Gladio was built around “inter-
nal subversion.”  It was to play “a determining role” in national poli-
tics, by employing “non-orthodox” warfare at the “national level” in
“close cooperation between the Italian and American secret services.”

 The purpose of Operation Gladio, in Italy, was to preserve the
legitimate authority of the right wing government put in place by the
US, and to combat any threats against its integrity, such as, the elec-
tion of socialist or communist leaders. According to the briefing
minute (25) Gladio should be ready “to adopt, with timely readi-
ness, preemptive action to assure the state’s prestige, capacity for
action and for government”.
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 In other words, the purpose of Operation Gladio was to use
terror and murder not to combat any external threat, but to combat
internal threats by using terrorism.  However, the targets of these
terrorist acts would not be opposition politicians per se, but rather,
the citizens of the state.  Through terrorism directed at citizens, and
if that terrorism could be blamed on political parties or groups striv-
ing, through democratic means, to gain elective office, then the popu-
lation would turn against those groups and vote instead to maintain
the status quo; i.e. a government that would act according to the best
interests of Britain, the United States and Wall Street.

 Immediately prior to and after the 1963 Italian elections which
gave the premiership to Christian Democrat Aldo Moro and 25% of
the vote to the Communists, CIA-trained terrorists, which included
a number of Nazis, began a campaign of terror which included indis-
criminate bombings and murder. The purpose was to blame the “com-
munists” so as to justify the overthrow of Moro and the installation
of a right-wing military dictatorship.

 Dossiers were compiled on over 150,000 Italians, mostly teach-
ers, students, union leaders, priests, and left-wing politicians, all of
whom were marked for arrest, imprisonment, and possible torture
and death (26).

 The bombing and indiscriminate killings continued and even
according to CIA handlers, soon became out of control (27). Never-
theless, CIA “decided not to close [Gladio] down because it fostered
useful contacts with the Italian security establishment.”

 Gladio also served as a useful weapon to keep the Italian elec-
torate under control.  Citizens would be shot and killed by snipers,
they and their families might be blown up while strolling down the
street. No one was safe. Even police were targeted (28).

 Vincent Vinciguerra (a neo-Nazi who took part in a 1972 bomb
attack that killed three police officers) confessed at trial “that every
bombing in Italy after 1969 was linked to one group.  “The orders
are given by an apparatus belonging to the state, specifically by a
secret parallel structure of the Interior Ministry” (29).

 And who controlled that “secret parallel structure?” In the 1960s
and 1970s, the Nixon White House, the CIA under William Colby
and George W. Bush, as well as Henry Kissinger and Alexander
Haig—a presidential wanna-be  (30).
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 “In an interview the exNATO operative [Vinciguerra] said that
Ted Shackley, the CIA’s deputy station chief in Rome, fixed a meet-
ing between Alexander Haig and Gelli [a Nazi terrorist] at the US
embassy in Rome in the early 1970s, when Haig was President
Nixon’s Chief of Staff. “Money” he said was then filtered to Stay
Behind or Gladio with the blessing and knowledge of both Haig and
the then head of the US National Security Council, Henry Kissinger”
(30).

 After Nixon’s resignation,  Alexander Haig became NATO
Supreme Commander, from 1974 to 1979.

 And who is “Gelli?”
 Licio Gelli was a Nazi who belonged to a secret society, known

as “P2” and the “Brotherhood of Death.”
 In Italy, the secret Brotherhood “P2” served as “a right-wing

shadow government, ready to take over Italy. Among its members:
four Cabinet Ministers, all three intelligence chiefs, 48 MPs, 160
military officers, bankers, industrialists, top diplomats and the Army
Chief of Staff.  After meetings between Gelli, Italian military brass
and CIA men in the embassy, Gladio was given renewed blessing -
and more money - by Haig and the then head of the National Secu-
rity Council, Henry Kissinger” (31). Again, the purpose of Gladio
was to engage in random as well as targeted acts of terror against
civilians.

 In 1976, while George Bush served as director of the CIA,
Kissinger as Secretary of State, and Haig as commander of NATO,
the “Brotherhood” was given orders to kidnap and kill Italian pre-
mier, Christian Democrat Aldo Moro, and overthrow his democrati-
cally elected government.

 After several failed attempts “terrorists” finally kidnapped Aldo
Moro in 1978 and held him in a Milan apartment “safe house.” While
held captive, Moro was questioned as to exactly how much he and
his government knew about the involvement of NATO and the CIA
in his abduction and Italy’s secret “parallel” army.  Indeed, before
he was killed, Moro was forced to provide detailed notes—which
later were discovered (and then suppressed) when the safe house
was raided by police (32). By then, Italian premier Aldo Moro was
already dead.

 Although the kidnapping and murder were blamed on terror-
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ists known as the “Red Brigade” it was later discovered that this
terrorist organization had been infiltrated and was acting as yet an-
other CIA front (33).

 As to Operation Gladio, when the existence of this organiza-
tion came to light, and when it was then blamed for the numerous
murders, terrorists acts and massacres that had been committed
against Italian citizens, the new Italian Prime Minister, Guilio
Andreotti, was forced to give a speech in the Italian parliament, dur-
ing which he explained that Gladio “must not drift from its formal
NATO military brief” (34).

 As to the Secret Brotherhood, P2, the existence of this secret
society did not come to light until 1981.  However, it was not until
1990, that evidence began to surface directly linking P2, not only to
the CIA (35), but to George W. Bush (36).

 As detailed on Italian television, and by Richard Bassett, of
the Times (36), Mark Hosenball, of the Sunday Times (37) and Paddy
Agnew of the Irish Times (28): “in the 1976 general election, the
huge success of the Communist Party...encouraged some to believe
that Italy might be close to voting in its first ever Communist gov-
ernment. In order to forestall this possibility, the CIA allegedly spon-
sored a series of right wing terrorist attacks, via Mr. Gelli’s P2...Bush,
then director of the CIA, not only knew about these CIA activities in
Italy (during the late 1970s and early 1980s) but was in fact one of
the masterminds behind them.”

THE “ASSASSINATION” OF PRESIDENT FORD
 It should be rather obvious that an organization which com-

mits random acts of murder and terror against the citizens and lead-
ers of democratic nations, and which orchestrates  the murders of 
democratically elected leaders, such as Chile’s Allende or Italy’s
Moro, would also engage in similar acts against the citizens of the
United States.

 We should not be surprised that if people like George Bush,
Dick Cheney, and Rumsfeld et al, were part of previous  administra-
tions which indulged in these terrorist crimes, that they, or in the
case of Bush, he or his son, would also be in power when terrorist
atrocities are committed against the United States.

*******
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 “Mr. George Bush of the CIA” (6) had been a CIA agent
since at least 1960.  In all likelihood, he never ceased to be a mem-
ber of  this Nazi-like  terrorist  organization,  even while  serving
as a congressman or chairman of the Republican Party.

 In the 1960s and 1970s, George Bush, and the CIA, were
dedicated to serving their own financial, personal, and political
interests as well as those of the Wall Street elite. Of course, they
did so in the name of “national security.” Ostensibly, their goal the
reason they authorized the murder of innocent men, women, and
children, was to fight communism.

 In 1975, Bush and Rockefeller were also in pursuit of an-
other shared goal.  Both men wanted to be president of the United
States. Rockefeller had in fact been seeking the Presidency since
1960, running in 1960, 1964, and 1968.

 Ever “since I was a little boy... I had wanted to be President,”
Rockefeller said (38). “After all, when you think of what I had,
what else was there to aspire to?” The vice-presidency, he believed,
was beneath him: “I Never Wanted to be Vice-President of Any-
thing!”

 In 1975, with Nixon gone, and Ford now president, George
Bush saw the as yet vacant vice-presidency as an obvious stepping
stone to the presidency. He desperately wanted to be vice-presi-
dent. With the help of his allies, he had campaigned unceasingly to
be chosen for the V.P. slot instead of Rockefeller. Bush was con-
vinced, once he became vice-president, the Presidency would be
but a heart-beat away (39).

 And then,  Ford chose Rockefeller who also wanted to be 
President.

 Hence, in 1974 and 1975, two related questions and goals
dominated the respective thinking of the Rockefeller - Bush camps:
How to obtain the Presidency - Vice-Presidency of the United States.

 The answer was in California.
 On September 5, 1975, after meeting with an Army Corps of

Engineer’s general, Lynette “Squeaky” Fromme, wearing an un-
usual, attention-grabbing red outfit, pulled a 45-caliber pistol from
beneath her coat and stuck it into the belly of President Gerald
Ford as he was reaching out to shake her hand (40).

 She had been standing behind a rope, along with others in a
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cheering crowd, waiting as President Ford walked along the roped-
off sidewalk of Capitol Park, shaking hands with well wishers.
Although Ford had noticed her well before the fateful moment,
due to her bright red garb, secret service agents did not, for reasons
that have never been explained.

 Lynette “Squeaky” Fromme, had long been known to the FBI
and Secret Service.  She had been an outspoken member of the
Manson murder family (40,41), and lived close to Sacramento,
where Charlie Manson was imprisoned—the city that Ford was
visiting that afternoon.  The FBI knew of Fromme, not just be-
cause of the Manson-connection, but as she had repeatedly called
attention to herself by appealing to and threatening corporate CEO’s,
several judges, as well as the commanding general of the Army
Corps of Engineers, demanding that they do something to clean up
the environment (40).

 Lynette “Squeaky” Fromme, had also been to the White
House—but not as an activist or a Manson family member, but as a
child.  Lynette had been one of the star performers in the Westchester
Lariats, a children’s dance group that performed at the White House
(40).

 Why did she want to kill Ford?
 As explained by Lynette in a “History Channel” interview:

“The very evening that I returned from San Francisco after speak-
ing with the general, I saw President Ford on TV, getting off the
plane in Sacramento. His visit was to address about 2000 area busi-
nessmen about enhancing their economic opportunities. Basically
he was beginning his 1976 campaign.”

 After her visit with “the general” Lynette decided she would
kill President Ford.

 “I simply stepped through the crowd to the President and
raised the gun to his midsection between his heart and stomach at
about two feet distance.”

 Although Ford had noticed her even before she pulled the
gun, the Secret Service still did not react.

 Then she pulled the trigger, and yelled, “Do you believe it?
It didn’t go off.”

 And then the Secret Service reacted.  Lynette “Squeaky”
Fromme was knocked to the ground and they confiscated her
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weapon.
  “Nelson Rockefeller came within a 32nd of an inch of be-

coming president of the United States,” said Donald Heller, an as-
sistant U.S. attorney who prosecuted Fromme.

 And if Rockefeller became President, who would he have
chosen to be Vice-President? The leading candidate would have
been George Bush.

 And of course, we were told, “there was no conspiracy.” And,
maybe there wasn’t. And, likewise, we were told, “there was no
conspiracy,” when, 17 days later, an FBI and police informant pulled
out her gun, and pointed it at President Gerald Ford.

 On September 22, 1975, Sarah Jane Moore aimed, and then
fired.

 Again, the Secret Service did not react.
 Sarah Jane Moore was well known to the FBI. She had been

recruited by them. Married five times, mother of four children, a
mentally disturbed nursing school drop out, Sarah Jane Moore fi-
nally joined the Women’s Army Corps, where she may have first
been recruited by the FBI.

 At age 42, Sara “dropped out” of society and immerse her-
self in the radical counter-culture lifestyle. Sara was a spy. She
went “underground” at the behest of the FBI, to gain information
on the terrorist organization, the “Symbionese Liberation Army”
which had kidnapped Patty Hearst (42,43).

 Sarah Jane Moore was still working for the FBI when she
pointed and fired her standard police-issued .38 Smith and Wesson
at President Gerald Ford as he left the St. Francis Hotel in San
Francisco.

 But then the unexpected happened.  As Secret Service agents
stood and watched, a bystander, Oliver Sipple, grabbed Moore’s
arm when he saw the gun, causing the bullet to miss Ford by just a
few feet. Instead it ricocheted off a wall and wounded a cab driver.

 Sipple, an ex-Marine, wrestled her to the ground, and shoved
his hand into the firing mechanism, which prevented her from get-
ting off a second shot (44).

 Why did she do it?
 Sarah Jane Moore explained: “It would have elevated Nelson

Rockefeller to the Presidency, and then people would see who the
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actual leaders of the country are.”
 Two months later, in November, 1975, Vice-President Nelson

Rockefeller announced that he was removing himself from consid-
eration as a possible running mate for President Ford in 1976.

*******
 As scientists, we do not believe in “coincidence.” “Coinci-

dence” is not a scientific explanation.
 As to why Secret Service agents twice failed to react, on two

separate occasions, and basically stood by and watched as
“Squeaky” Fromme, and then, 17 days later, Sarah Jane Moore,
tried to kill Ford, we can only speculate.

 As to “Squeaky” Fromme and Sarah Jane Moore, perhaps
they were just “crazy” and mentally disturbed.  And yet, what are
we to make of the fact that Sarah Jane Moore worked with the
FBI? Or that “Squeaky” Fromme had just left the office of the “gen-
eral” when she decided to kill Ford?

 Although we can only speculate, it is noteworthy that in ad-
dition to having had repeated contact with government officials,
that both women were mentally disturbed.  This again, may simply
mean that they were just crazy, and it was just a coincidence that
the Secret Service ignored both women and stood by and watched.
On the other hand, as part of the CIA’s operation “MKULTRA” it
was discovered that those who are mentally disturbed are also the
best candidates for hypnosis and the trauma-induced splitting of
the personality.  That is, subjects who are “mentally ill” are the
most susceptible to psychological manipulation (mind control) and
to becoming a programmed assassin.

 In this regard, Squeaky Fromm and Sarah Jane Moore have a
lot in common with Sirhan Sirhan (the assassin of Robert Kennedy),
Artur Bremer (the attempted assassin of presidential candidate
governor George Wallace who had a good chance of beating Nixon
in 1972), and Hinckley (the attempted assassin of Reagan) as all
were mentally ill, and as all would have been ideal candidates to be
programmed by “MKULTRA.”

 As to the assassination of foreign leaders, however,
“MKULTRA” would not be necessary as the CIA has an entire
army of willing murderers.
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TERROR AND THE ASSASSINATION OF ORLANDO
LETELIER

 Much to his astonishment, George Bush was not chosen to
be Ford’s running mate for the coming 1976 presidential elections.
That honor went to Senator Bob Dole—thus earning him a black
mark in the Bush book of enemies.

 Instead, “George W. Bush of the CIA” became director of
the organization that he had belonged to since at least 1960.  As
director of the CIA, Bush now had complete power over the Ameri-
can version of Hitler’s Gestapo. And Bush had a lot of enemies
who he wished to punish: including the Italian people and Italian
premier, Christian Democrat Aldo Moro; the Jamaican people and
the Prime Minister of Jamaica (45), the people of Angola (46), the
British Labor party (47), and the list goes on.

 Under the guidance of director Bush, the CIA, sought to de-
stabilize, undermine or overthrow a number of democratically
elected  leaders, including Mr. Michael Manley, the prime minis-
ter of Jamaica (45), the Harold Wilson government in Britain (45),
and, as detailed above, the government of Italian premier, Chris-
tian Democrat Aldo Moro, whose abduction and murder, it has been
claimed, was masterminded by George Bush (28).

 Bush, of course, was carrying on a CIA tradition, including
the use of terrorist attacks on Western democratic countries. Ter-
rorism was justified as it was a means of stopping communists.

 George Bush was also eager to put a stop to those “commu-
nists” who were daring to speak out, in the United States. Bush
was especially annoyed about those communists who were mak-
ing speeches and appearing before congress in order to denounced
the U.S.-backed dictatorship and terrorist-government of Chile.

 As detailed in chapter 4, the CIA and Nixon White House 
(Nixon, Helms, Kissinger,  and other criminals)  orchestrated the
murder of Mr. Allende, the new president of Chile. Following his
overthrow and the installation of a right-wing Nazi-like military
dictatorship, the people of Chile were subjected to an unrelenting
campaign of terror, torture, and mass murder—courtesy of the U.S.
back military government.

 However, much to the annoyance of Bush et al., Allende’s
minister of defense, Orlando Letelier, had not only escaped the
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carnage, and had come to the United States, but he was making
speeches and was going to appear before Congress to denounce
the atrocities being committed against his people.

 Mr. Letelier would have to die.

*******
 The CIA is a criminal, terrorist organization, which employs

murder, torture, and terrorism to achieve its goals (10,14,15,16).
When a “threatening” voice speaks out in Europe, the CIA can call
upon CIA-backed European-based terrorists cells to do its bidding
(20-37).

 As detailed in chapter 4, the CIA also oversees, directs, and
coordinates a network of Chilean, Argentinean and Paraguayan
CIA-trained secret police agencies which provide “special teams”
that travel “anywhere in the world... to carry out assassinations,”
including the assassination of political opponents in the United
States (9,48).

 In 1976, while Bush served as director of the CIA, one of
these “special teams” was dispatched to the United States for the
explicit purpose of committing terrorists acts which would include
the murder of a U.S. citizen, Ms. Ronnie Moffitt of the Washington
Institute for Policy Studies.

 Presumably, Ronnie Moffitt, was collateral damage.
 As detailed in chapter 4, the Nixon White House and the

CIA had orchestrated the assassination of Chile’s democratically
elected president, Salvardor Allende, and had installed a brutal,
ruthless dictatorship in his place.  Two years later, thousands of
students, teachers, doctors, nurses, and peasants were still being
rounded up and tortured by the US-backed government of General
Augusto Pinochet. However, one high ranking member of Allende’s
government had got away, defense minister, Orlando Letelier.

 Orlando Letelier was in the United States and speaking out
about the horrors and atrocities committed by the U.S. backed po-
lice state. Letelier had been meeting with newspaper editors and
congressional leaders and was starting to draw attention to U.S.
policy in Chile.  Now, Letelier was scheduled to testify about the
involvement of various U.S. agencies’ in the political environment
in Chile before and during the Allende government.  (49).



191

...Bush, bin Laden, 9-11...

 Orlando Letelier had to be stopped.
 Orlando Letelier had to be killed.
 He would be murdered, on September 21, 1976, along with

Ronnie Moffitt, in a car bombing on the streets of Washington DC,
with the connivance and under the watchful eye of the Bush CIA,
and FBI. Letelier and Moffitt were murdered, by a CIA agent, who
used a car bomb to kill them in the heart of Washington’s Embassy
Row (49).

  The agent in question, Michael Vernon Townley, worked for
David Atlee Philips who was director of the CIA’s western hemi-
sphere operations in Chile.  However, Townley, was also working
for DINA, the Chilean secret police (50,51). DINA and the CIA
had played a direct role in the overthrow and murder of the demo-
cratically elected president of Chile, Salvador Allende (52,53).

 In the days before this terrorist act and these two murders
took place in the streets of our nation’s capital, “the US Ambassa-
dor to Chile, George Landau, sent a cable to the State Department
with the singular request that two agents of the DINA be allowed
to enter the United States with Paraguayan passports (50,51). The
cable also indicated that the two DINA agents also wanted to meet
with Gen. Vernon Walters, the outgoing Deputy Director of  the
CIA. The cable was read by Walters, and was also passed into the
hands of CIA Director George Bush. Bush not only had this cable
in his hands; Bush and Walters discussed it (49,51).

 Later on, in 1980, Bush denied that he had ever seen this
cable; he had been out of the loop, he claimed (51).

 However, during Senate confirmation hearings on Decem-
ber 15, 1975, when asked by Senator Gary Hart about “assassina-
tions and coups d’etat in various countries around the world,” Bush
replied, “You mean in the covert field? Yes. I would want to have
full benefit of all the intelligence. I would want to have full benefit
of how these matters were taking place.”

 Nevertheless, in this instance, Bush claimed to be “out of the
loop,” that he did not have benefit of knowing about these matters.
“Out of the loop” was to become a George H.W.  Bush mantra—
especially in regard to knowledge of doing business, cooperating
with, or allowing terrorists into the United States.

 In a story that is basically identical to what occurred in the
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months, weeks, and days before the tragedy of 9/11, the two DINA
men were on the FBI’s “watch list” and were to be picked up if
they tried to enter the US.  Nevertheless, the two DINA terrorists
entered the US without difficulty on August 22, and then journeyed
to Washington while under the watchful eye of at least one U.S.
government intelligence agency (49).

 Likewise, 9/11/2001 hijackers, Khalid Al-Midhar and Nawaf
al-Hazmi had been closely monitored by the CIA since at least
January 2000 (54). The CIA and FBI knew the men were linked to
al-Qaeda and had met with Osama bin Laden. The CIA and FBI
also knew that they had entered the United States soon after at-
tending an  al-Qaeda conference in Malaysia, in January 2000. And
yet, for the next 18 months, both agencies permitted these two ter-
rorists to move about freely and to hold meetings with at least six
of the other 9/11 hijackers, including Mohammed Atta and Hani
Hanjour.

 The CIA also had contact with the terrorists who would as-
sassinate Orlando Letelier and Ms.  Ronnie Moffitt.

 According to US-Chilean Ambassador George Landau, after
the two DINA terrorists arrived in Washington they “alerted the
CIA by having a Chilean embassy employee call General Walters”
at CIA headquarters (49).

 Soon thereafter, the DINA agents assassinated their targets
by blowing up their car on a Washington street near embassy row.

 Following the assassination, the FBI, CIA, and George Bush
began orchestrating a massive coverup. Indeed, when Assistant US
Attorney Eugene M. Propper, the prosecutor in the Letelier-Moffitt
murders, asked CIA director Bush for CIA cooperation, Bush re-
plied (49,51): “Look. I’m appalled by the bombing. Obviously we
can’t allow people to come right here into the capital and kill for-
eign diplomats and American citizens like this. It would be a hid-
eous precedent. So, as Director, I want to help you. As an Ameri-
can citizen, I want to help. But, as director, I also know that the
Agency can’t help in a lot of situations like this. We’ve got some
problems.”

 What kind of problems?
 The problem of keeping secret the fact that the CIA employs

terrorist squads in South America and Europe.  The problem of
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keeping it secret that these terrorist squads are under CIA control.
The problem of keeping it secret that the CIA coordinates and di-
rects terrorist cells in Europe and South America and that the CIA,
through its surrogates, carries out terrorist acts, including
kidnappings, torture, murder, and car bombings which can then be
blamed on “leftists” or “terrorists” when in fact they are being con-
ducted by the CIA.

 As detailed earlier in this chapter, the CIA employs terrorists
even in Western, democratic countries, in order to terrorize and
destabilize governments not to their liking, and to murder govern-
ment leaders who they are unable to overthrow (20,23,33,36,50).

 Who ordered the assassination of Orlando Letelier?
 One guess.
 George Bush not only refused to help in any investigation

because “we’ve got some problems” but he and the CIA actively
disrupted and sabotaged Assistant US Attorney Eugene M.
Propper’s investigation into the assassination.

 Twenty five years later, another Bush, upon becoming presi-
dent, would use his administration and the FBI, to sabotage and
hinder investigations into the so called intelligence failures that led
to 9/11, and would prevent lower level FBI agents from conducting
investigations that might have uncovered the 9/11 plot.

CREATING MIDDLE EASTERN TERRORISTS
 By January, 1977, and with the election of President Carter,

Bush was out of a job. He had lasted two years.
 Bush became a board member of the Purolator Oil Company

and the Eli Lilly & Co., a major pharmaceutical company. But one
of his main areas of activity was in banking, becoming chairman
of the executive committee of First International Bank in Houston,
and  director of First International Bankshares Ltd. and First Inter-
national Bankshares Inc. of London (39,55), a merchant bank whose
investors included his good friends the Emir of Kuwait, the Sultan
of Brunei, King Fahd of Saudi Arabia, and the bin Laden family.

 Bush was also holding meetings with CIA officials, at CIA
headquarters—meetings which the new CIA director, Stansfield
Turner, claims he knew nothing about (55). Some of these meet-
ings were likely related to Bush’s business dealings with the King
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Fahd family, the bin Laden family, the Emir of Kuwait, and the
Sultan of Brunei.

 Since the 1950s, the CIA had been working on a plan to ex-
tend its grip into the Middle East, and to create terrorist cells, simi-
lar to Operation Condor in South America, and Operation Gladio
in Europe (9,20,23,33,36,48). In the 1970s, part of the plan called
for additional Middle Eastern terrorist cells to be created, controlled
and directed by the CIA, in conjunction with the Saudi, Pakistani,
Iranian, and Iraqi Intelligence services.

 Some of these terrorist cells were to be dispatched into the
oil-rich southern states of the Soviet Union whose populations were
predominantly Muslim. These terrorist cells would be employed
to spread terror among civilians and to assassinate government of-
ficials (56). The purpose of these attacks, would be to destabilize
the Soviet Union, and to eventually gain access to these oil-rich
states which would then be exploited.

 Other terrorist cells were directed to attack Middle Eastern
and European targets. As was the case with Operation Gladio and
Operation Condor, these terrorist acts would be directed at civil-
ians and were to be blamed on leftists, communists, and the Soviet
Union. Thus, although the CIA was conducting these terrorist op-
erations, the Soviets would be blamed for “fostering, supporting,
and expanding” terrorist activity worldwide” (57,58)—when as
often as not, the terrorists were under CIA control.

 Bush was an oil-man. In 1978, the long range objective in
the Middle East and along Russia’s southern border, was to stir up
an Islamic revolution and thus strip the oil-rich states away from
the Soviet sphere of influence (56).  “Holy warriors” (“mujahideen”)
financed, trained, and armed by the CIA would be the vanguard,
and one of its leaders would be a young charismatic Saudi multi-
millionaire, Osama bin Laden—a member of the bin laden family,
with whom the Bush family had been doing business (59). In 1979,
Osama bin Laden, who was representing his family company in
Istanbul, began working with the CIA to recruit “Arab-Muslim
volunteers for Afghan’s resistance against the Red Army” (60).

THE ASSASSINATION OF RONALD REAGAN
 In 1978 and 1979, the main focus of Bush’s activities was
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the next presidential election. What Bush wanted most was to be-
come President of the United States. He had wanted to be Presi-
dent since his days at Yale, but so far, he had lost every election but
one (39,61).  Although the public was willing to elect him, once, to
the position of congressman, Bush was repeatedly rejected in his
bid for higher office, including a Senate seat in his adopted home
state of Texas.  Knowing that the public and many conservative
Republicans did not like him and viewed him with mistrust, Bush
had instead sought the presidency by being appointed to the vice
presidency—a position he sought in 1968, 1972, 1973, 1974, and
1976.

 No matter how hard he tried, Bush just could not get the job.
 His former position as CIA director, however, provided Bush

with new contacts, new influence, and lots of money as well as the
“dirt” to quiet at least some of the opposition and to make a direct
run for the Presidency, which he sought in 1980.

 George H.W. Bush was rejected yet again. The people and
the Republican party refused him the Republican nomination for
President. Bush was rejected not just because Ronald Reagan was
the superior man and the superior candidate, but also because of
the persistent questions about slush funds, illegal activities,
coverups, and his role in the “Trilateral Commission” (39)

 On February 7, 1980 Reagan gave a speech in which he
pointed out that Bush was a member of the Trilateral Commission,
which, according to Reagan, “had led to a softening on defense.”
George Bush, Reagan pointed out, believed that making money by
doing business with the enemies of America was more important
than defending America. Bush, he implied believed that business
and commerce “should transcend, perhaps, the national defense.”

 Bush would betray America, Reagan implied, because money
was more important to Bush than principles, honesty, or our na-
tional security.

 The Reagan camp also began running political ads, one of
which showed a drawing of Bush juxtaposed above a headline which
read in part: “A coalition of multinational corporate executives,
big-city bankers, and hungry power brokers... want to give you
George Bush... their purpose is to control the American govern-
ment.”
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 “He wants to be king” added Republican Senator, Bob Dole.
 Bush resigned from the Trilateral Commission (39,61) but it

was too late.
 Reagan got the nomination, and Bush, with the help of his

Wall Street, CIA, Skull and Bones network, began working full tilt
on Reagan’s entourage to convince them that having Bush on the
ticket would help elect Reagan. Reagan, however, did not like and
did not trust George Bush. In the days just before the Republican
convention, Reagan is quoted as saying: “I want to be very frank
with you. I have strong reservations about George Bush. I’m con-
cerned about turning the country over to him.”

 Reagan didn’t just distrust him, he thought Bush was an ef-
feminate “wimp.”

  Finally, at the very last minute, despite Reagan’s distrust and
scorn, Bush became his running mate.

 In November of 1980, Reagan won the Presidency in a land-
slide. Bush was sworn in as vice-president of the United States on
January 20.

 Bush still wanted to be President. Bush had wanted the Presi-
dency since childhood. Bush believed it was his birthright (39). Bush,
with his long history and expertise in the use of covert operations to
undermine governments and overthrow democratically elected lead-
ers, intended to become President. Indeed, many on the Bush team,
thought Reagan was unworthy of and too old and stupid to do the
job (39) —an idea which was nurtured by the “liberal press” (62).

 Bush believed that he should be president, and not Reagan.

*******
 Two months after Reagan took office, there was an incredible

lapse of security, and the son of a Bush supporter shot and nearly
killed Ronald Reagan.

 Yes, that right, John Hinckley, the man who shot Reagan, was
the son of a Bush supporter and the brother of a Bush family friend
(63).

 “BUSH’S SON WAS TO DINE WITH SUSPECT’S
BROTHER!”  screamed the March 31, headline of the Houston
Post:  “Scott Hinckley, the brother of John Hinckley Jr., who is
charged with shooting President Reagan and three others, was to
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have been a dinner guest Tuesday night at the  home of Neil Bush,
son of Vice President George Bush, The Houston Post has learned.”

 “Bizarre happenstance, a weird coincidence” said, Bush
spokeswoman Shirley M. Green.

 “Coincidence” is not, however, a scientific explanation.
 Another “coincidence.” In the days before the assassination

attempt, plans had been made for Vice-President Bush to assume
the presidency on Match 31, 1981, should Reagan die or be killed.

 Reagan was shot at close range on March 30, 1981.
 As recalled by Bush ally, James Baker—one of the “Texans”

mentioned by Nixon when discussing the Bay of Pigs-Kennedy
Assassination—: “there had been a FEMA [Federal Emergency
Management Administration] exercise scheduled for the next day
on presidential succession.”

  Bush spokeswoman Shirley M. Green,  called it another
“weird coincidence.”

 “Coincidence” is not, however, a scientific explanation.
 Immediately after Reagan was shot, and given the absolutely

incredible lapse of security which surrounded the assassination at-
tempt, some cabinet members began to suspect a conspiracy. Gen-
eral Alexander Haigh insisted that “no matter what the truth is about
this shooting, the American people must know it.” If a conspiracy
were discovered, Haigh promised, it will be exposed (64).

 Haigh didn’t know it yet, but he had now become the enemy
of George H.W. Bush. Within a year, Haigh who had publicly wor-
ried about a conspiracy, was gone, driven from the White House by
George Bush and friends.

 It did not take a year, however, to rule out a conspiracy. Five
hours after Reagan had been shot, George Bush categorically ruled
out a conspiracy: The shooting was a completely isolated incident
and the work of a lone gunmen. “There was no conspiracy,” Bush
proclaimed.

 And what about the fact that the shooter was the son of a
supporter and the brother of a family friend?

 “Bizarre happenstance, a weird coincidence,” repeated Bush
spokeswoman Shirley M. Green.

 And then the cover-up began.
 On March 31, in addition to the Houston Post, the Associated
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Press reported that (63) “the family of the man charged with trying
to assassinate President Reagan is acquainted with the family of Vice
President George Bush and had made large contributions to his po-
litical campaign. Scott Hinckley, brother of John W. Hinckley Jr.
who allegedly shot at Reagan, was to have dined tonight in Denver
at the home of Neil Bush, one of the Vice President’s sons.”

 Not true—proclaimed Bush spokesman Peter Teeley.
 Neil Bush, however, was not yet with the program. He admit-

ted that he knew the Hinckley family. He also told reporters that the
Hinckley family had made large financial contributions to the Bush
1980 presidential campaign.  Likewise, Neil’s wife, Sharon Bush
recalled that the Hinckley family “have given a lot of money to the
Bush campaign” (63).

 Not true—proclaimed Bush spokesman Peter Teeley.
 Neil Bush, however, had worked on his father’s campaign for

the presidency, his primary duties being the raising of campaign con-
tributions.  So it is unlikely he would have been mistaken.

 He’s mistaken, claimed the Bush team.
 When asked why Bush’s son would claim otherwise, Teeley

replied, “I don’t have the vaguest idea. We’ve gone through our files
and we have absolutely no information that he [Hinckley] or any-
body in the family were contributors, supporters, anything.”

 John Hinckley’s father, Scott Hinckley, vice president of the
Denver-based firm, Vanderbilt Energy Corp., became unavailable
 to reporters. He refused comment.

 What about the friendship between Neil and Hinckley?
 No comment.
 Neil lived in Lubbock, Texas, throughout much of 1978, where

John Hinckley lived from 1974 through 1976 and where he again
resided from 1977 through 1980, after returning from Hollywood
(65).

 “A coincidence” said, Bush spokeswoman Shirley M. Green.
 Neil had invited Hinckley’s brother over for dinner just before

the shooting.
 No comment.
 Another “bizarre coincidence:” John Hinckley should have

been on the Secret Service “Watch List.”  Like Sara Jane Moore and
Squeaky Fromm, Hinckley was already known to the FBI prior to
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the attempted assassination.
 Six month earlier, Hinckley had been arrested by airport au-

thorities in Nashville, when three guns were found in his possession.
Both Reagan and then President Carter had been campaigning in
Nashville at about the same time, Reagan two days before Hinckley’s
arrest, and Carter on the same day (65).

 The FBI was informed of his arrest, and they may have learned
about his mental problems and suicidal tendencies (65). Yet, although
he was known to be dangerous and a threat to the president, on the
day of the attempted assassination Hinckley was allowed to stand
right next to Secret Service agents, for over 30 minutes, as they waited
for Reagan to emerge from a hotel where he had given a speech.
But, in a scenario similar to the events leading up to 9/11, the FBI, it
is claimed, failed to inform the Secret Service that Hinckley was
dangerous.

 The FBI, like Bush, also assured the public that “there was no
conspiracy and Hinckley acted alone.”

NO CONSPIRACY
  In September of 1980, Hinckley left Texas to attend a writing

course at Yale—the home of Skull and Bones.  Hinckley never en-
rolled.  What exactly he did there, is unknown, except for the fact
that he tried several times to make contact with one of Yale’s under-
graduates: the actress Jodie Foster (65).

 Prior to his visit to Yale, Hinckley, we are told, developed an
obsession with Ms. Foster, after viewing the movie Taxi Driver. Taxi
Driver is the tale of a psychotic taxi driver, Alex Bickle (played by
Robert DeNiro).  Bickle had decided to assassinate a politician that
he knew to be linked to the love of his life.  At the last moment,
Bickle changes his mind, and instead rescues a young prostitute, Iris
(played by Jodie Foster), from her violent pimp.

 After spending several weeks at Yale, Hinckley decided to as-
sassinate, we are told, either President Carter or Bush running-mate,
Ronald Reagan.  However, after he apparently stalked both candi-
dates, he returned to Yale where he met with unknown parties and
again sought to make contact with Ms. Foster (65). On October 6,
Hinckley flew to Lincoln, Nebraska where he was to meet with “one
of the leading ideologicians” of the American Nazi Party. We are
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told that this meeting never took place.
  From Lincoln Hinckley flew to Nashville only to be arrested

at the Nashville airport for carrying handguns. Handcuffs were also
found in his luggage.  Hinckley paid a fine, was released, and then
flew back to Yale, where he again met with unknown parties. From
Yale it was then to Dallas, where he purchased more handguns.

 On the afternoon of March 29, he picked up a copy of the
Washington Star and noticed that Reagan would be speaking to a
labor convention at the Washington Hilton.

 At 1:45 PM, Hinckley was waiting outside the hotel and drew
attention to himself by approaching Reagan and waving (65). Reagan
waved back. His Secret Service agents did nothing.   At 2:25, Hinckley
was still waiting as Reagan, accompanied by secret service agents,
left the hotel. As Reagan was walking towards his waiting limousine
a voice shouted, “President Reagan, President Reagan!”

 Hinckley—crouching like a marksman in full view of secret
service agents who stood to his left and to his right —fired his gun
six times, hitting press secretary James Brady, Thomas Delahanty a
police officer, then a building, then secret service agent Timothy
McCarthy, and then the bullet-proof glass of the President’s limou-
sine, and finally Reagan’s limousine. The bullet ricocheted off the
car, then hit the President in the chest. It was only after he emptied
his gun that secret service agents reacted and wrestled Hinckley to
the ground.

 Hinckley, however, had been lurking outside the hotel, near
Reagan’s waiting limousine, for over 30 minutes!

 According to our sources at Saint Elizabeth’s Psychiatric Hos-
pital, Hinckley was immediately taken to the FBI academy, located
on a Marine base in Quantico, Virginia. At Quantico, the FBI pro-
vides diverse training in a variety of areas, including interrogation,
psychological operations, psychological profiling, and the study of
serial killers, murderers and assassins. The Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration also has their training academy at Quantico, Virginia.

 Hinckley was drugged and given major tranquilizers almost
immediately after he was arrested. While in this drugged condition,
Hinckley underwent a variety of unknown procedures while he tried
to explain that others had been involved in the assassination attempt.
Although professing his love for Ms. Foster, Hinckley claimed he
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was acting out a script, and had been helped and assisted by the CIA
who had given him drugs and put the idea in his head. The FBI,
showed little interest in his story which they dismissed.

 When the FBI was presented with detailed notes Hinckley had
written about a “conspiracy “to assassinate the President, the FBI
brushed them aside, calling his claims and his notes an “imaginary
conspiracy.”

 And yet, although all claims of a “conspiracy” were “imagi-
nary” the FBI has refused to release almost 100 pages of documents
concerning Hinckley’s associates, any organizations he may have
belonged to, or his personal finances.

 What could not be swept away or under the rug was the fact
that members of the Bush family knew members of the Hinckley
family (63).

 To get around this “coincidence” the Bush team began de-
scribing John Hinckley Jr. as a “black sheep.... a renegade brother in
the family.” The Hinckley family “must feel awful.”

 Almost the same exact language would be used by George H.
W. Bush and his son, George W. Bush, 20 years later, after 9/11,
when the Bush family friendship and business relationship with the
family of Osama bin Laden was reported.

 Osama bin Laden, the Bush team explained, was a black sheep,
an outcast, a renegade brother who had been disowned by the bin
Laden family. The bin Laden family must “feel awful.”

 Three days after 9/11, although he had grounded all private
and commercial planes, President George W. Bush made personal
arrangements for 11 members of the bin Laden family to escape the
United States and to fly back to Saudi Arabia, where they would be
beyond the reach of reporters and the FBI (66).

 Bush wished to spare them the embarrassment and pain of
being questioned, we are told, because, we are assured, they must
feel awful.
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